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	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
17 Middle Street

	Historic Name:
Samuel & Mary A. Coffin House

	Uses:
Present: 
single residence

	Original: 
single residence

	Date of Construction:   ca.1845

	Source:  historic maps, deeds

	Style/Form:   
Classical Revival

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
brick

	Wall/Trim:  
vinyl clapboards

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


None

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


Garage added north side

1 sty addition on rear


Vinyl siding added


Window sash replaced



	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:    0.13 acre

	Setting:   This house is sited on the northwest side of Middle Street on a lot with mature trees. The area is largely residential.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The Samuel & Mary A. Coffin House is a story-and-a-half wood frame single dwelling is located on the west side of Middle Street north of Clark Street.  It is one of a number of similar houses built around the same time on Middle Street.  Situated at the front of a very shallow lot (the property once extended back to School St.), the house has a two-room plan divided by a central entry and a one-story shed roof ell attached to the south side of the rear.  The roof overhangs the front with a shallow eave containing a box gutter while terminating flush with the end and rear walls.  The five bay front façade contains a central entrance and flanking windows evenly spaced; the upper story contains no windows.  End walls contain two windows on each story.  The entrance is embellished with sidelights and a hood mounted on large scrolled brackets. More recently, a shed roof extension has been added to the rear ell.

The house is sited close to the street, set back behind a small yard.  It has an equally small rear yard, the result of the subdivision of the rear of the parcel.  Paved parking areas are located on both sides of the house.  On the north side the area terminates at a one-car garage attached to the end of the house.  The vehicle bay was been walled in and contains a double casement windows.  

The Samuel & Mary A. Coffin House, built ca. 1845, is a representative example of a modest worker dwelling in Georgetown.  Its story-and-a-half scale and massing are characteristic features.  Ornament is focused on the entrance, notably a large hood mounted on large scrolled brackets.  With limited alterations, the house is a distinctive contributing component of the village historic district.
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
In March 1849 Georgetown shoe manufacturer Benjamin Little sold currier and bootmaker Samuel Coffin 26 rods of land on Bacon (now Middle) Street with a  building on it for $600, and roughly three years later the heirs of the late David Tenney sold to Coffin an undeveloped quarter-acre adjacent to the land he already owned and extending the parcel back to School Street.
 Samuel Coffin appears to have been living in the house now numbered 17 Middle Street when the 1850 census was taken, and the 1856 map of Georgetown attaches the name “S. Coffin” to the property. 
Born in 1818 in Newburyport, Samuel Coffin was living in Georgetown at the time of his 1844 marriage to Mary Ann Scribner, daughter of Samuel and Hannah Rogers Scribner of Newbury. Coffin is shown in the 1850 census with $1200 in real property; similarly, in the 1860 census he is shown here with $500 in real property. The 1870 census shows Coffin on Middle Street with $1500 in real property. In 1876, however, Coffin died, and his widow for a time boarded in another household while the house on the northwest or School Street side of their lot was built. Mary Ann Coffin is shown in this School Street house on the 1884 map of Georgetown and in the 1885 directory. She died later that year of consumption at the age of sixty-four.

By 1880 the widow Louisa Adams Kimball was living at 17 Middle Street.  Born in 1801 in Rowley, Louisa Kimball was the daughter of Benjamin Adams III of Georgetown and Lois Perley Adams of Boxford. In November 1823 in Rowley she married farmer John Kimball, a tanner and currier from Haverhill and the son of Benjamin and Betsy Kimball. The couple had eight children—John A., Louiza Maria, Caroline Amanda, George A., Abba Bradstreet, Sarah Adams, Charles A., and Benjamin—between 1824 and 1844. By 1850 John and Louisa Adams Kimball were living with their children Louisa, George, Charles, Sarah, and Benjamin in a two-family house in Georgetown.  They still may have been living here when John Kimball died unexpectedly in December 1857. In 1870 Louisa Kimball was living in South Georgetown in a house she owned, and there she boarded the family of farmer Allen G. Hood. By 1880 she was almost certainly living at 17 Middle Street, and she boarded the twenty-year-old grocery clerk Charles P. Adams, probably related to her. The 1884 map attaches the name “Mrs. Kimball” to the house on this site, and the 1885 directory shows her here, at what was then numbered 7 Middle Street.
In 1891 Louisa Adams Kimball died at the age of ninety, and in March 1892 her children sold 17 Middle Street for $935 to shoe manufacturer Horace E. Harriman.
 Harriman rented the house of the eight households listed on Middle Street in the 1910 census, five were occupied by tenants, and the absence of street numbers makes it difficult to determine who might have rented 17 Middle Street. The Harriman family owned the house until 1948. In 1920 the Harrimans rented the property to Haverhill shoe shop foreman Henry James Minchin, who acquired 14 Middle Street shortly afterward, and in 1930 shoeworker Gordon Lewis Marston rented the house. Marston, the son of shoe manufacturer Moses Phillips Marston and his wife Grace E. Towne, both natives of Essex, was born in 1902 in Essex and was living in his father’s 18 East Main Street house in Georgetown in 1920. In 1926 Gordon Marston married Doris Anna Young in Georgetown. He lived at 17 Middle Street only briefly, and by 1940 he was living at 69 North Street, where he remained until his death in 1959. 
In September 1948 Horace Harriman’s son Fred sold 17 Middle Street to Richard L. and Mary W. Nichols.
 Born in Everett in 1914, Richard Lee Nichols was the son of Arthur Taylor Nichols, a wool dealer and later an oil company salesman, and Marion Louise Ames. The family lived in Newton in the 1920s and early 1930s, and by 1940 Richard Nichols had married and was an assistant tanner in a Salem belting shop. He was still a leather worker in Salem in 1957, when he and his wife Mary were still living at 17 Middle.
By 1979 the Nicholses had moved to Enosburg Falls, Vermont, and they sold the property in that year to Robert E. DeCosta Jr. and his wife Barbara, who owned it for less than two years. From 1987 to 2002 the family of Robert E. Nunan owned 17 Middle Street. Current owners Gladwyn E. Frazier Jr. and his wife Denis bought the property in 2003.

BIBLIOGRAPHY and/or REFERENCES
   


Arrington, Benjamin F., ed. Municipal History of Essex County in Massachusetts. NY: Lewis Historical Publishing Co., 1922.

Field, Jane. A Brief History of Georgetown Massachusetts 1838-1963. Rev. ed. 1988. Georgetown: Georgetown Historical Commission, 1988.

Gage, Thomas. The History of Rowley, Anciently Including Bradford, Boxford, and Georgetown, from the Year 1639 to the Present Time. Boston: F. Andrews, 1840.
Georgetown, Boxford, Byfield, Newbury, and West Newbury, Massachusetts, Directory. Boston: W. E. Shaw, 1901-2, 1905, 1909, 1912, 1914, 1916-17, 1918, 1925. 

Hill, Edwin P.  “History of Georgetown, Massachusetts.” In Standard History of Essex County, Massachusetts. Edited by Cyrus M. Tracey, William E. Graves, and Henry M. Batchelder. Boston: C. F. Jewett, 1878.

Hull, Forrest P. Georgetown: Story of One Hundred Years, 1838-1938. 1938. Reprint. Georgetown, MA: Georgetown Historical Commission, 2006.
Merrill, Samuel. A Merrill Memorial: An Account of the Descendants of Nathaniel Merrill, an Early Settler of Newbury, Massachusetts. Cambridge, MA, 1917-28.
Nelson, Henry M. “Town of Georgetown History.” In Hurd, D. Hamilton. History of Essex County, Massachusetts, with Biographical Sketches of Many of Its Pioneers and Prominent Men. Vol. 1. Philadelphia: J. W. Lewis and Co., 1888.
Sammarco, Anthony Mitchell, for Georgetown Historical Society. Images of America: Georgetown. Portsmouth, NH: Arcadia Publishing, 2002.
MAPS

“Map of the Centre of Georgetown in 1800.” In Perley, Sidney H., “Centre of Georgetown in the Year 1800.”  The Essex Antiquarian: A Quarterly Magazine Devoted to the Biography, Genealogy, History, and Antiquities of Essex County, Massachusetts 2, 7 (July 1898): 201.

Map of Georgetown in 1810 and 1840. In Gage, Thomas. The History of Rowley, Anciently Including Bradford, Boxford, and Georgetown, from the Year 1639 to the Present Time. Boston: F. Andrews, 1840. 320.

“Map of New Rowley Surveyed and Drawn by Philander Anderson 1830.” Georgetown Historical Society.

Map of Georgetown. 1856. In Walling. H. F. A Topographical Map Essex County Massachusetts. Boston: Smith and Morley, 1856.

Atlas of Essex County, Massachusetts. Philadelphia: D. G. Beers and Co., 1872). Plates 59 and 61.

“Town of Georgetown Mass.” and “Village of Georgetown Mass.” In Atlas of Essex County, Massachusetts (Boston: George H. Walker, 1884).

“Georgetown, Mass. 1887.” Drawn and Published by George E. Norris, Brockton, Massachusetts. Troy, NY: Burleigh Lithographic Establishment, 1887.”
PHOTOGRAPHS (all photos by Neil Larson, 2012)
[image: image3.jpg]—
>

\\\\\\N‘N e R 2 5 \
7 A vﬁ\‘.&s\% 7 1o s
i 4 oy \_
4.8 |

—

L 2 W |





17 Middle Street: views from SE (top) and NW (bottom)

[image: image4.jpg]T
e
-

LR






National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
    G

                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The Samuel & Mary A. Coffin House, built ca. 1850 is a representative example of a modest worker dwelling in Georgetown.  Its story-and-a-half scale and massing are characteristic features.  Ornament is focused on the entrance, notably a large hood mounted on large scrolled brackets.  With limited alterations, the house is a distinctive contributing component of the village historic district.
� Benjamin Little to Samuel Coffin, 17 March 1849, SED 419:142; Orlando B. Tenney, Charles J. and Eveline M. Bailey, David B. Tenney, Georgetown, and Putnam F. Tenney, Orono ME, to Samuel Coffin, 29 December 1852, SED 472:16.


� Eben and Caroline A. Hobson; Robert A. and Sarah A. Coker; George A. Kimball, Groveland; Charles A. Kimball, Haverhill; Abby K. Palmer, Boston, to Horace E. Harriman, 12 March 1892, SED 1338:34. Eben Hobson married John and Louisa Kimball’s daughter Caroline in 1849; Robert A. Coker married their daughter Sarah in 1869. When and to whom their daughter Abba Bradstreet married is unknown.


� Fred H. Harriman to Richard L. and Mary W. Nichols, 25 September 1948, SED 3624:552.


� Richard L. and Mary W. Nichols, Enosburg Falls VT, to Robert E. DeCosta Jr. and Barbara L. DeCosta, 17 Middle Street, 15 August 1979, SED 6622:587; Carl and Nancy Watson to Robert A. Nunan, Robin B. Nunan, and Helen M. Rohner, 27 January 1987, SED 8805:571; Robert A. and Robin B. Nunan to Charlene S. Phipps, 17 Middle, 28 June 2002, SED 18886:344; Charlene S. Phipps, 17 Middle Street, to Gladwyn E. Frazier Jr. and Denise M. Frazier, husband and wife, 17 Middle, 25 August 2003, SED 21612:345.
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